MEMORANDUM FOR: Jane A, Axelrad, Director of Enforcement, IE

FROM: W. H, Schultz, Enforcement Coordinator, RIII

SUBJECT: CONSUMERS POWER COMPANY - MIDLAND
PROPOSED CIVIL PENALTIES

We have reviewed the licensee’'s responses dated March 10, June 24, and
July 12, 1983, and have concluded that the violations did occur as stated.
The civil penalty proposed [or Items A and B is based on the breakdown in
the implementation of the licensee's quality assurance program as evidenced
by numerous examples of noncompliance with nine of the eighteen different
criteria as set forth in 10 CFR 50, Appendix B.

Therefore, we recommend that a $120,000 civil penalty b2 imposed ($60,000
for Item A and $60,000 for Items B.l1, B.2, B.3, B.4, 3.5, B.6, B.7, and
B.8). However, in view of the $3500 overpayment made by Consumers Power
Company in response to the January 7, 1981 Notice of Violation and Notice
of Proposed lmposition of Civil Penalties, the cumulative amount of civil
penalties designated in the Notice of Violation is reduced from $120,000
to $116,500.

Attached 1is a draft letter to the licensee with enclosure.

W. H. Schultz
Enforcement Coordinator

Attachment: As stated
cc w/attachment:
J. Lisberman, ELD

Enforcement Coordinators, RI, RII,
RIV, and RV
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Docket No. 50-329

Docket No. 50-330

Consumers Power Company
ATTIN: Mr. John D, Selby
President
212 West Michigan Avenue

Jackson, MI 49201

Gentlemen:

This will acknowledge receipt of your letters dated March i0, June 24, and
July 12, 1983, in response to the Notice of Violation and Froposed
Imposition of Civil Penalties sent to you with our letters dated February 8,
and May 23, 1983, Our February 8, 1983 letter concerned violations found
during the special inspection conducted at the Midland Nuclear Power Plant,
Units 1 and 2, during the period October 12 - November 25, 1982, and on

January 19-21, 1983.

After careful consideration of your response, and for the reasons given
in the enclosed Order and Appendix, we have concluded that the violations
did occur as set forth in the Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition
of Civil Penalties. The proposed civil penalties for Items A and B were
based on the breakdown in the implementation of your quality assurance
program as evidenced by numerous examples of noncompliance with nine of

the eighteen different criteria as set forth in 10 CFR 50, Appendix B.



Consumers Power Company 2

Included in these violations were examples demonstrating the consequences

of the failure to exercise adequate oversight and control of your principal
contracter, to whom you had delegated the work of executing the quality
assurance program. Item A addressed the consequences of QC supervisors
instructing QC inspectors to l;spend an inspection when an excessive number
of deficiencies were observed. item B illusirated numerous examples where
cognizant personnel failed to follow procedures, drawings, and specifications;
first line supervisors and field engineers failed to identify and correct
unacceptable work; construction management failed to call for quality control
inspections in a timely manner; and quality assurance personnel failed to
identify the problems and ensure that corrective actions were taken. These
violations occurred as originally stated. No azdequate reasons have been
provided for not imposing the proposed civil penalties for the vioclations.
However, in view of the $3500 overpayment made by Consumers Power Comjany

in response to the January 7, 1981 Notice of Violation and Notice of Proposed
Imposition of Civil Penalties, the cumulative amount of civil penalties
designated in the Notice of Violation is reduced from $120,000 to $116,500.
Accordingly, we hereby serve the enclosed Order on Consumers Power Company

imposing civil penalties in the amount of One Hundred Sixteen Thousand Five

Hundred Dollars.

In regard to your June 24, 1983 supplemental response to Item B.6 of the
Notice of Violation, we are forwarding your response to the appropriate
technical NRC office for their review, We will inform you of the results

of that review.
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In accordance with Section 2.790 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," Part 2,
Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, a copy of this letter and the

enclosures will be placed in the NRC's Public Document Room.

Sincerely,

Richard C. DeYoung, Director

Office of Inspection and Enforcement

Enclosures:

1. Order Imposing Civil
Monetary Penalties

2. Appendix ~ Evaluation

and Conclusions



U. S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

In the Matter of ) Docket No. 50-329
) Docket No. 50-330

Consumers Power Company

N N

Midland Energy Center ) Construction Permit No. CPPR-82

ORDER IMPOSING CIVIL MONETARY PENALTIES

Consumers Power Company (the "licensee") is the holder of Comstruction
Permits No. CPPR-81 and No, CPPR-82 (the "permit") issued by the Nuclear
Regulatory Commission (the "Commission"). These Construction Permits
authorize the construction of the Midland Energy Center near Midland, MI.

These Construction Permits were issued on December 15, 1972.
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As a result of a special inspection of the licensee's facilities by the

Nuclear Regulatory Commission's Office of Inspection and Enforcement during
the period October 12 - November 25, 1982, and on January 19-21, 1983, the
NRC Staff determined that a breakdown had occurred in the implementation of

the Midland quality assurance program as evidenced by numerous examples of

sonstruction Permit No. CPPR-81



noncompliances with nine of the eighteen criteria as set forth in 10 CFR 50,

Appendix B.

The breakdown was caused by personnel who failed to follow ptocoduics.
dravings, and specifications; by first line supervisors and field engineers
who failed to identify and correct unacceptable work; by construction
management who failed to call for quality control inspections in a timely
manner, and by quality assurance personnel who failed to identify the
problems and ensure that corrective actions were taken. The NRC served

the licersee a written Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil
Penalties by letter dated February 8, 1983, The Notice stated the nature
of the violations, the provisions of the Atomic Energy Act, the Nuclear
Regulatory Commision's regulations that were violated, and the amount of
civil penalty proposed for each violation. The licensee responded to the
Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalties with letters

dated March 10, June 24, and July 12, 1983,

Upon consideration of Consumers Power Company's responses (March 10, June 24,
and July 12, 1983) and the statements of fact, explanation, and argument in
denial or mitigation contained therein, as set forth in the Appendix to the
Order, the Director of the Office onf Inspection and Enforcement determined
that the penalties proposed for the violations designated in the Notice of

Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalties should be imposed.



However, in view of the $3500 overpayment made by Consumers Power Company in
response to the January 7, 1981, Notice of Violarion and Notice of Proposed
Imposition of Civil Penalties, the cumulative status of civil penalties

designated in the Notice of Violation is reduced from $120,000 to $116,500.

In view of the foregoing and pursuant to Section 234 of the Atomic Energy
Act of 1954, as amended, (42 U.S.C. 2282, PL 96-295), and 10 CFR 2,205, IT
IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

The licensee pay civil penalties in the total amount of
One Hundred Sixteen Thousand Five Hundred Dollars within
thirty days of the date of this Order, by check, draft, or
noney order payable to the Treasurer of the United States
and mailed to the Director of the Office of Inspection

and Enforcement, U.S.N.R.C., Washington, D. C.20555.

The licensee may within thirty days of the date of this Order request a
hearing. A request for a hearing shall be addressed to the Director, Office
of Inspection and Enforcement. A copy of the hearing request shall also be
sent to the Executive Legal Director, USNRC, Washington, D.C, 20555, If a
hearing is requested, the Commission will issue an Order designating the time
and place of hearing. Should the licensee fail to request a hearing within

thirty days of the date of this Order, the provisions of this Order shall be



effective without further processings and, if payment has not been made by

that time, the matter may be referred to the Attorney General for collection.

In the event the licensee requests a hearing as provided above, the issues

to be considered at such a hearing shall be:

(a) whether the licensee was in violation of the Commission's requirements
as set forth in the Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of

Civil Penalties referenced in Section II above, and
(b) whether on the basis of such violations this Order should be sustained.

FOR THE NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

Richard C. DeYoung, Director

Office of Inspection and Enforcement

Dated at Bethesda, Maryland

this day of 1983



Evaluations and Conclusions

Each item of noncompliance and associated civil penalty identified in the
Notice of Violation (dated February 8, 1983), which was denied, in part, by
the licensee, is restated below. The Office of Inspection and Enforcement's
evaluation of the licensee's response is presented, followed by conclusions
regarding the occurrence of the noncompliance and the proposed civil renalty.
In addition, the Request for Reduction of Civil Penalty is also restated

below. The Office of Inspection and Enforcement's evaluation of the licensee's
request is presented followed by conclusions regarding the proposed civil

penalty.

Statement of Noncompliance

10 CFR 50, Appendix B, Criterion Il requires holders of construction per=-
mits for nuclear power plants to document, by written policies, procedures,
or instructions, a quality assurance program which complies with the re-
quirements of Appendix B for all activities affecting the quality of
safety-related structures, systems, and components and to implement that

program in accordance with those documents.



Contrary to the above, Consumers Power Company and its contractor did not
adequately implement a quality assurance program to comply with the require-

ments of Appendix B as evidenced by the following examples:

10 CFR 50, Appendix B, Criterion V requires, in part, "Activities

affecting quality shall be prescribed by documented instructions,
procedures, or drawings of a type appropriate to the circumstances
and shall be accomplished in accordance with these instructions,

procedures, or drawings."

Consumers Power Quality Assurance Program Policy No. 5, Revision 12,
Paragraph 1.0 states, in part, "Instructions for controlling and
performing activities affecting qualitv of equipment or activities
such as...construction, installation...are documented in instruc-

tions, »rocedures...and other forms of documents."

Contrary to the above, the following instances of failure to
accomplish activities affecting quality in accordance with instruc~

tions, procedures, specifications, or drawing requirements were

identified:

Installation of diesel generator engine control panels ICll1,
1C112, 2C11]1, and 2C112 was not in accordance with the require-~
ments delineated on foundation Drawing 7220-M18~250 4in that

the foundation bolt washers required by the subject drawing

were not installed.




b.

f.

Unscheduled pull box associated with conduits 2BNOO6, 2BNOO7,

and 2BDA002 was not sized in accordance with the requirements
delineated on Sheet 42 of Drawing E-42 in that the 12" 1.12" x 6"
as-built dimensions of the subject pull box did not conform to
the 134" x 12" x 6" dimension requirements delineated on Sheet

42 of Drawing E-42.

The 1'-10" wall to support dimension required by raceway support
Drawing E-796(Q), Sheet 2 of 2, Revision 5, for hanger No. 86
was not correctly translated into the as-built installation of
the subject hanger in that the as-built wall to support dimension

vas 2'=1%" in lieu of the required 1'-10",

The 6'-6" wall to support dimension required by raceway support
Drawing E-796(Q) Sheet 1 of 2, Revision 11 for hanger No. l4
was not correctly translated into the as-built installation of
the subject hanger in that the as~built wall to support dimen-

sion was 5'-5" in lieu of the required 6'-6",

The inspectors identified high strength steel plete placed
in the laydown area which was not marked with the material
type and grade as required by Field Instruction FIG~9,600,

Revision 1.

The inspectors identified various stock steel shapes in the

"Q" area with yellow-colored paint on the ends (indicating



the material was non "Q") and various steel stock shapes in

contrary to the requirements of Field Instruction FIG-9.600,

Revision 1.

g. The slots in the muffler support plates were not machined but
vere determined to be irregular and flame cut, leaving rough

slot edges not in conformance with design Drawing MI18-425(5)-1.

h. Jacking plates were not installed beneath the center support
plates of Bay | diesel generator muffler as required by Drawing

M18-250-6.

i. Procedure FID-2,100, "Outstanding FCR/FCN Retirement," Revision
2 was inadequate in that the design drawings were not changed
wvhen an FCR/FCN had been retired and no further reference to
the FCR existed on the revised drawing. As a result, the retired
FCR C-2103 relating to HVAC structural steel was lost and could
not be traced to the design drawing to ensure a complete quality

record.

§. Field Sketch CY~1035 which {llustrated the bottom gusset plates
for HVAC fan supports was not identified as "Q", nor was there
a reference to the affected draving on the sketch as required

|
|
the non "Q" area without painted ends (indicating "Q" material),
by Procedure FPD-5.000, "Preparation of Field Sketches."



k. Procedure FPD-5.000, "Preparation of Field Sketches," Revision

1 did not require design drawings to reference appropriate

field sketches to ensure a complete quality record.

1. The eight bracing top gusset plates identified on Drawing C-1004,
Revision 10, as 5/16" thick were measured by the inspectors to
be 1/4" thick in all four diesel generator bays. This change i

was neither reviewed nor properly authorized.

m. The as-built gusset plate connections in Bay 1 were not built
as identified on Detail 3 of Drawing C-1004. The angle braces

\
|
|
|
were welded together as opposed to having separate welds for ‘
each brace. This change was neither reviewed nor properly

authorized.

n. None of the sixteen %" bracing angles identified on Drawing C-1004
were constructed utilizing %" material. This change was neither

revieved nor properly authorized.

0. Drawing C-1004, Detail 2, required the W10 beam-to-beam connection
to be welded. In Bay No. 3, a bolted connection was constructed
in lieu of the required welded connection, without review nor proper

authorization,

¥+ The column cover plate identified on FCR-C440] was not constructed

in Bay No. 3 as required. The plate was slotted instead of solid



2.

as required. This change was neither reviewed nor properly

authorized.

q. A section (approximately 18 x 10 x 4 inches deep) of the primary
containment wall in Containment Purge Room 702 was removed (by
chipping) without obtaining approval as required by FIG-1-111,

Revision 4, Concrete Drilling Permit.

10 CFR 50, Appendix B, Criterion III requires, in part, "Measures

shall be established to assure that applicable regulatory requirements
and the design basis are correctly translated into specifications,
drawings, procedures, and instructions. Measures shall also be estab-
lished for the selection and review for suitability of application of
materials, parts, equipment, and processes that are essential to the
safety-related functions of the structures, systems, and components.
Design changes, including field changes, shall be subject to design
control measures commensurate with those applied to the original design
and be approved by the organization that performed the original design

unless the applicant designates another responsible organization."

Consumers Power Company Quality Assurance Program Policy No, 3,
Revision 12, Paragraphs 3.3 and 3.5 state, in part, "Each group or
organization performing detailed design translates the applicable
regulatory requirements, design bases, codes, standards, and design
criteria into design documents, such as...dravings.... Changes to the

design require the same review and approval as the original design by

the group or organization delegated lead design responsibility."




Contrary to the above:

a. Measures were not established for the selection and review for
suitability of application of "Q" materials associated with the
diesel generator exhaust muffler in that design drawings and
specifications did not indicate the material ide-tity of the

installed muffler saddle supports and plates.

b. Design Drawing C~147 required bolted bracing connections for the
diesel generator building HVAC bracing gusset plates. Field Sketch
CY-1035 was used to change the design to welded connections in lieu
of the specified bolted connections. This design change was neither

roperly revieved nor approved.
p P

e, Design Drawings C-1004 and C~147 did not specify the sizes of thq
diesel generator building HVAC fan gusset plates. A "combo" shop
vork order request was used to design the gusset plates without

appropriate review and approval.

d. The licensee failed to analyze the four diesel generator building
monorails as seismic Category I as described in their commitment

to Regulatory Guide 1.29, in Appendix 3A of the FSAR,

.. The licensee designed and constructed thirty-~two diesel generator
building exhaust system hangers without ensuring that the applicable

requirements for "Q" components were included in the design documents




f. The licensee purchased armor stone for a "Q" portion of the peri-

meter dike without translating the applicable regulatory require~

ments into appropriate specifications and design documents.

10 CFR 50, Appendix B, Criterion VII requires, in part, "Measures shall
be established to assure that purchased...equipment...conforms to the
procurement documents. These measures shall include provisions, as
appropriate, for...inspection at the contractor or subcontractor source,

and examination of products upon delivery."

Consumers Power Quality Assurance Program Policy No., 7, Reviiion 12,
Paragraphs 1.0 and 3.4, state, in part, "The Midland Project Office
and the Midland Project Quality Assurance Department verify that
procurement requirements are met. This is accomplished through...
source evaluation and inspection...receipt inspections are made to
verify that the items...conform to procurement requirements not

verified by source surveillance or inspection..,."

Contrary to the above, source inspections at the panel supplier facility
and receipt inspections at the Midland site failed to ensure conformance
of the internal wiring within diesel generator engine control panels
IC111, 1C112, 2C111, and 2C112 to Procurement Specification 7220-G-5,
Revision 1. Paragraph 6.0 of Specification 7220-G-5 states, "All
electrical wiring...within the board enclosure shall conform to the
highest industrial standards of design and workmanship." An NRC in-
spection on October 15, 1982 {dentified the following examples of

defective terminations of internal wiring within the subject panels.




a. The output lead on the Relay Tach device had numerous broken

strands at the termination lug.

b. The Kl lead on the Relay Tach device had two broken strands
resulting in a potential short circuit between the Kl lead and

an adjacent conductor,

¢. The 1~ lead on the CB | device did not have all strands inserted

into the compression lug.

10 CFR 50, Appendix B, Criterion X requires, in part, "A program for
inspection of activit'es affecting quulity shall be established and
executed...to verify conformance with the documented...drawvings for

accomplishing the activity."

Consumers Pover Company Quality Assurance Program Policy No. 10,
Revision 12, Section 1.0 states, in part, "Inspection and surveillance
are periormed to assure that activities affecting quality comply with
docuuented. .. .design documents...inspection and surveillance are

performed according to written instructions.”
Contrary to the above:

a. An inspection program was not established to ensure segregation
of cables installed in horizontal trays vhich used metal dividers
to segregate control and instrumentation cables in accordance with
design requirements.

LS
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b. Quality Control (QC) inspections failed to ensure that activie
ties affecting quality conformed to design documents in that QC
inspections performed on July !, 1981 and documented on QCIR
C210-172 failed to detect and identify nonconformances B.1.(1)
through (o) of this Notice of Violation. These nonconformances
were associated with installation of the diesel generator building

HVAC fan support steel.

10 CFR 50, Appendix B, Criterion XIII requires, in part, "Measures shall
be established to control the...cleaning and preservation of material and
equipment in accordance with work and inspection instructions to prevent
damage or deterioration. When necessary for particular products, special

protective environments...shall be specified.”

Consumers Power Company Quality Assurance Program Policy No. 13, Revision
12, Paragraph 3.3, states, in part, "Suppliers provide plans...maintain

and control ftems upon arrival at the site.”

Contrary to the above, the licensee did not {mplement a maintenance
program to prevent five of sixteen installed diesel generator slide
bearing msuffler plates “rom accumulating dirt and dust as required by

the vendor's manual,

10 CFR 50, Appendix B, Criterion IX requires, in part, "Measures shall
be established to assurs tha* special processes, including welding,

heat~treating, and nondestructive testing, are controlled...."

10




7.

Consumers Power Company Quality Assurance Pro;rin Policy No. 9, Revision
12, Paragraph 1.0 states, in part, "Where the required level of quality
cannot be measured by inspection only of the item...accomplish these
processes under controlled conditions in accordance with npplfcablc
codes, standards and specifications using qualified procedures, equipment
and personnel.” Paragraph 3.3 states, in part, "...Personnel performing
special processes maintain records to verify that the required activities
wvere accomplished in accordance with qualified procedures by qualified

personnel."

Contrary to the above, during welding of the diesel generator building
exhaust piping hanger support steel, the licensee did not verify preheat
of existing safety-related structural steel to a temperature of 70°F as

required by site specifications and the AWS 1974 Code.

10 CFR 50, Appendix B, Criterion VI requires in part, that "Measures
shall be established to control the issuance of documents, such as
instructions, procedures, and drawings including changes thereto, which

prescrite all activities affecting quality...."

The Consumers Power Company Quality Assurance Program Policy No. 6,
Revision 12, Paragraph 1.0 states, in part, "Measures are included to
assure that documents, including changes,...are distributed according

to a controlled distribution to the user functions."

11



Contrary to the above, measures were not established to control the
distribution of changes (red lines) to hanger isometric drawings in
that changes to Drawing 1-~652-2-25(Q) were not controlled utilizing

the Site Document Control Center.

10 CFR 50, Appendix B, Criterion XV requires in part, "Measures shall
be established to control materials, parts, or components which do not
conform to requirements in order tc prevent their inadvertent use or

installation.”

Consumers Power Quality Assurance Program Policy No. 15, Revision 12,
Paragraph 1.0, states, in part, "Items, services or activities which

are deficient in characteristic, documentation or procedure which renders
the quality unacceptable or indeterminate and which is considered signi-
ficant to safety are identified as nonconformances. Nonconforming
items...are identified by marking, tagging, segregating or by documenta-
tion. Nonconforming items are controlled to prevent their inadvertent
installation or use. Nonconforming items and activities are recorded

and are considered for corrective action to prevent recurrence....'

Contrary to the above:
a. Measures were not established or implemented to determine if
materials ultimately restricted (per Nonconformance Report No. 3266)

from installation or use in ASME Class I systems were actually

installed or used in Class I systems.

12



b. As of Novemder 10, 1982, two nonconforming conditions identified
by the NRC on October 12, 1982, and confirmed by the licensee on
October 19 and 25, rcspectively, had not been documented on a
nonconformance report, a quality assurance report, or otﬁcr

appropriate report. The two nonconforming conditions were:

(1) The diesel generatcr exhaust hangers were not classified,
designed, or built as "Q" as committed to in the FSAR.

(See item 2.c.)
(2) The design of the diesel generator monorail was not analyzed

to seismic Category I design requirements as committed to in

the FSAR., (See item 2.d.)

Evaluation of Licensee's Responsc

The licensee aduits that examples B.l.b., B.l.,c., B.1.d., B.l.e., B.l.g.,
B.1.h., B.1.4., B.1.j., B.1.k., B.,1.1., B.l.m., B.l.n., B.l.0., B.1l.p.,
B.l.q., B.2.a., B.2.b., B.2.c., B.2.d., B.2.e., B.2.f., B.3., B.b.a.,
B.4.b., B.5, B.6, B.7, ®.8.a., and B.8.b., did occur as stated in the
Notice of Violation. The licensee denies, in part, examples B.l.a. and

B.1.f.

13



NRC Evaluation

Concerning example B.l.a., the licensee contends that since the inspection
records for panels 1C-111, 1C-112, 2C~111, and 2C-112 were open with
attributes such as washers and torquing not yet inspected, the portion of
the noncompliance pertaining to flat washers was not a violation. The
licensee's position that open inspection records negate the failure to
install the required flat washers is unacceptable. The philosophy of
inspecting quality into the job cannot be accepted as a substitute for the
philosophy of building quality into the job. The licensee admits the
remaining portion of the violation which deals with the omission of bevel

washers.

Concerning example B.1.f., the licensee contends that, contrary to the
Notice of Violation, all steel in the "Q" area was identified in accordance
with procedures. The licensee purports that some manufacturer's marking of
this steel led to confusion. At the time of the NRC inspection, the in-
spectors observed yellow-colored paint on steel in the "Q" area. This
condition, as stated in the Notice of Violation, is contrary to the require-
ments of Field Instruction FIG-9.600, Revision 1. The licensee's contention
that this paint was applied by some manufacturers does not mitigate the
finding. Site quality control inspections should have detected the noncon-
forming paint and initiated proper corrective actions. The licensee admits
the remaining portion of this violation which deals with the marking of steel

in "non-Q" areas.

14



Conclusion
These violations did occur as originally stated. The information in the
licensee's response does not provide a basis for modification of the

enforcement action.

Request “>r Reduction of Civil Penalty

Pursuant to 10 CFR 2,205, Consumers Power Company respectively requests that
the NRC reconsider the amount of civil penalty proposed to CPCo for the
violations cited in the NRC's letter, dated February 8, 1983, J. G. Keppler
to J. D. Selby. The Company does not contest the validity of the violaticns
and aggrees that a civil penalty is warranted, but believes that certain

mitigating factors should be considered.

The NRC's criteria for enforcement actions (at 47 Federal Register page 9991,
March 9, 1982) sets forth specific criteria for increasing or reducing base

¢ivil penalties, and provides in part as follows:

"2. Corrective Action to Prevent Recurrence. Recognizing
that corrective action is always required to meet regula-
tory requirements, the promptness and extent to which the
licensee takes corrective action, including actions to
prevent recurrence, may be considered in modifying the
civil penalty to be assessed. Unusually prompt and c¢xten-

sive corrective action may result in reducing the proposed

15



civil penalty as much as 50X of the base value shown in
Table 1. On the cther hand, the civil penalty may be

increased as much as 25X of the base value if initiation of

corrective action is not prompt or if the corrective action
is only iininally acceptable. In weighing this factor
consideration will be given to, among other things, the
timeliness of the corrective action, degree of licensee
initiative, and comprehensiveness of the corrective action
- such as whether the action is focused narrowly to the
specific violation or broadly to the general area of

concern."

We believe that our actions to correct the situation at issue have been timely
and have been conceived and organized mainly through our own initiative. Most
important, however, is that our program to correct these deficiencies is

cunprehensive and far reaching.

Shortly after receiving feedback on the NRC's inspection findings, the Company

launched major, extensive corrective action. The Company halted the majority
of the Category I work of its prime contractor, and laid the groundwork for a
verification of past inspections and statusing of incomplete work. The work
stoppage resulted in the layoff of more than 1,000 worlkers. The Company also
initiated major, generic corrective action addressing the specific areas of

NEC inspection findings. The Company's entire plan is entitled the Construc-
tion Completion Program, and included steps responding broadly to the NRC's

and Company's areas of concern. This was addressed at length in the Company's

16



letter of January 10, 1983, J. W. Cook to J. G. Keppler and further discussed

at 8 Public Meeting with the NRC at Midland on February 8, 1983.

The corrective action undertaken by the Company was not narrowly fscused on
the specific violations identified by the NRC. The work reduction entended
to all major safety related structures on-site, not merely the diesel gener-
ator building which was the focus of NRC's inspection. The verification pro-
gram begins in the auxiliary building, includes the reactor buildings and

diesel generator building as well as the service water pump structure.

The Construction Completion Program, which is the organizational basis for
the generic corrective action, will encompass and structure the remaining
preturnover systems and area work to be done at the Midland site, (excepting
soils, HVAC and NSSS work). The Company's willingness to accept the NRC's
suggestion that we take direct control of the project QC staff formerly under
Bechtel supaervision extends broadly to the entire job, and involves a major
commitment of additional manpower and resources in recertification, training,

and inspection activities.

The Company does not contest the NRC's decision to increase the civil penalty
on the basis of certain other factors specified in the enforcement guidelines,
We request, hovever, that consideration be given in determining the amount of

the penalty to the corrective action taken and planned by the Company.

17



Evaluation of Licensee's Response

While the licensee's corrective actions are recognized as being both
comprehensive and far reaching, these actions are viewed as having been
dictated by the nature and severity of the noncompliance 1d¢ntif§gd during
the diesel generator building inspection. In addition, we perceive the
issuance of nonconformance reports in March 1983 (items B.l.b., B.l.c.,
B.1.d., B.l.e., B.1.f., and B.5) for nonconforming conditions identified

by the NRC during the period of October 12 - November 25, 1982, and

January 19-21, 1983, to be indicative of less than prompt corrective action.
Finally, the licensee's decision to halt the majority of the Category 1 work
of its prime contractor was based upon the knowledge that the NRC would
initiate escalated enforcement actions to stop the work unless the licensee

acted promptly.

Conclusion

The information in the licensee's request does not provide a basis for

reduction of civil penalty.
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INTRODUCTION

The NRC has established a program for the Systematic Assessment of
Licensee Performance (SALP). The ‘SALP is an integrated NRC Staff
effort to collect available obseivations and data on a periodic
basis and evaluate licensee performance based upon those observa-
tions. SALP is supplemental to normal regulatory processes used to
insure compliance to the rules and regulations. SALP is intended
pPrimarily from a historical point to be sufficiently diagnostic to
provide a rational basis for allocating future NRC resou.ces sad to
provide meaningful guidance to the licensee's management to promote
quality and safety of plant conmstruction and operation.

A NRC SALP Board, composed of the staff members listed below, met on
May 24, 1983, to review the collection of performance observations

and data to assess the licensee performance in accordance with the
guidance in NRG Manual Chapter 0516, Systematic Assessment of Licensee
Performancey summary of the guidance and evaluation criteria is
provided in Section II of this report.

This report is the SALP Board's assessment of the licensee safety
performance at #yrea Nuclear Station, Units 1 and 2, from Jemuary 1+
1,196/
through Bete-bo¢-343\§982. <*”l3 y
Mary 3 1, y
The results of the SALP Board assessments in the selected functional

areas were presen}gd So the licensee at a meeting held or Juse-13,-1583.

SALP Board for Nuclear Station:
. E. Norelius, Director, Division of Project and Resideut Programs

R. L. Spessard, Director, Division of Engineering
- A. Kind, Chairman, Director, Division of Radiological and Materials
Safety Programs.

~S—#—Reyes, Chiel, Test-ProgramsSection |
_ ; - e S

.

A i ron
R. C. Knop, Chief Projects Branch 1 |
T.N. Tambling, Chief, Program Support Section
~9: 5 ction




11.

CRITERIA

The licensee performance is assessed in selected functional areas
depending whether the facility is in & construction, pre-operational
or operating phase. Each functional area normally represents areas
significant to nuclear safety and the environment, and are normal
programmatic areas. Some functional areas may not be assessed because
of little or no licensee activities or lack of meaningful observations.
Special areas may be added to highlight significant observation.

Oae or more of the following evaluation criteria were used to assess
each functional area.

1. Management involvement in assuring quality

- Approach to resolution of technical issues from safety standpoint
3. Responsiveness to NRC initiatives

4. Enforcement history

5. Reporting and analysis of reportable events

6. Staffing (including management)

7. Training effectiveness and qualification.

However, the SALP Board is not limited to these criteria and others
may have been used where appropriate.

Based upon the SALP Board assessment each functional area evaluated
is classified into one of three performance categories. The defini-
tion of these performance categories is:

Category 1. Reduced NRC sttention may be appropriate. Licensee man-
agement attention and involvement are aggressive and oriented toward
nuclear safety; licensee resources are ample and effectively used such
that a high level of performence with respect to operational safety or
construction is being achieved.

Category 2. NRC attention should be maintained at normal levels.
Licensee management attention and involvement are evident and are
concerned with nuclear safety; licensee resources are adequate and
are reasonably effective such that satisfactory performance with
respect to operational safety or construction is being achieved.

Category 3. Both NRC and licensee attention should be increased.
Licensee management attention or involvement is acceptable and
considers nuclear safety, but weaknesses are evident; licensee
resources appear to be strained or not effectively used such that
minimally satisfactory performance with respect to operational
safety or construction is being achieved.
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STAFF EVALUATION OF CONSUMERS POWER COMPANY
PROPOSAL TO USE STONE AND WEBSTER MICHIGAN, INC.
TO CONDUCT THE THIRD PARTY
CONSTRUCTION IMPLEMENTATION OVERVIEW OF THE
MIDLAND NUCLEAR PLANT

S

Purpose and Background

The purpose of this document is to provide an evaluation of the Consumers
Power Company's (CPCo) proposal to use Stone and Webster, (S&W) Michigan, Inc.
to conduct the third party overview of the Construction Completion Program at
Midland. Consumers' proposal is documented in their letter of April 6, 1983,
in response to the NRC's March 28, 1983, request for additional information.
The CPCo commitment to provide for an independent third party Construction
Implementation Overview (CIO) has been reviewed and found acceptable. This

evaluation provides the basis of the NRC's acceptance of Consumers proposal.

The purpose of the CIO is to provide an independent overview of the Comstruction
Completion Program (CCP) to assure the program is adequate weitten and will be
properly implemented. This is to ensure that the construction of the facility
can be completed in conformance with the Commission's regulations and the

construction permit.



DRAFT

The S&W overview of the CCP will be independent from and supplemental to the
normal NRC inspection program. As part of their inspectica program, the NRC

inspectors will monitor and review the S&W CIO.

The use of S&W as the third party overviewer will provide additional
assurance of proper implementation of the quality program. In addition,
it will function as a mechanism to allow members of the public and the

NRC to regain confidence in the program.

The results of the overview program will be submitted to the Regional
Administrator in a weekly report of CCP activities overviewed and any

problems identified.

The NRC has required communications between CPCo and S&W to follow certain
protocol to assure S&W's independence is being maintained and to assure public
and NRC knowledge of S&W activities and correspondence. It should be noted
that the protocol provides for a monthly meeting, open to the public for
observation, to review S&W activities for the month and to discuss problems

identified by the overview.

CPCo's Proposed Third Party Reviewer

CPCo has proposed that Stone and Webster perform an independent overview of
the Midland project CCP. The NRC staff has considered CPCo's submittal of
April 6, 1983, and responses to Region III questions, public comments, and

the clarification of submitted comments and additional comments received at



2.1

public meetings held in Midland, Michigan on February 8, 1983, and August 11,
1983. In addition, the staff conducted numerous ;tzf::i.aud telephone conversa-
tions with representatives of the Government Accountability Project (GAP) and
the intervenors. In considering CPCo's proposal, the staff has u;cd as guidance
the letter of February 1, 1982, from Chairman Palladino to Congressmen Ottinger
and Dingell, (attached) which sets forth the "competence" and standards that
have been applied by the Commission in determining the acceptability of proposed

third-party reviewers.

S&W Competence

The staff has considered the qualifications of both the S&W organization and the
individuals proposed as team members to conduct the independent overview of the
Midland project. Input to the staff's review included the information

supplied in CPCo's submittal, the responses to the staff's inquiries, the

S&W submittals and the staff's existing knowledge of S&W performance at other

nuclear power plants.

The staff has reviewed S&W's experience in assessing nuclear construction
projects, particularly its performance in independent reviews of design,
construction, and quality assurance undertaken for utilities as input to the

NRC's operating license reviews.!

The staff has also reviewed the qualifications of the key persons proposed for
the project, as set forth in the April 6, 1983, April 11, 1983, and May 19, 1983,

submittals, and has concluded that the team has significant stated experience in

'Reference Secy 82-414, "Diablo Canyor Design Verification Program Phase [I

Recommendations"
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Docict Neo. 50-329
Dociiet Xi. 50-330

Consurers Power Company
ATTi: VNr. James W. Cook

Vice President

¥idland Project
1245 West Parnall Road
Jackson, MI 49201
Gentlemen:
During our inspection of December 20-22, .982, our inspector was
requested to review and authorize 46 prioritized separate work
activities in accordance with the NRC/CPCo Work Authorization Procedure
of August 12, 1982, During this review of the initial ten items, our
inspector concluded that he was being asked: (a) to review drawings
and procedures which personnel had not previously looked at before
giving to him, let alonf'revieued for adequacy; (b) to review revisions
of drawings that personnel knew were being revised; (c) to review
drawings which apparently were not ready for construction to begin
because all the details were not worked out ye¢; and (d) to approve

activities on the premise that the inspector's concerrs will be

incorporated during the construction of the activity.
These conclusions were based upon reviewing the following activities:
a. SWPS deep-seated benchmallrs - D\l'ing C-2004, Revision 1
(1) The strap spacing for holding the benchmark riser pipeS

ib’t:uy
rigid during underpinning was not on the

drawing. Subsequently, Bechtel Field Engineering

indicated that revision 2 of the drawing was mbtx\j vsswed

euf which picked this up.
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(1

(2)

(3)

SWPS

(1)

The drawings illustrated two gradations of filter sand
to be used in the dewatering well construction. However,
they did not indicate which filter sand gradation went

into which well.

There was no method specified to install the filter sand

in the smaller interior dewatering wells.

Notes on the drawings indicate&to install a standpipe
before coring all the way through the bottom slab to
balance the hydraulic pressure. However, the notes d¢4
not indicate that to balance téb hydraulic pressure, a
column of water inside the standpipe greater than the

water level outside the structure must be maintained.
to CWIS hydraulic seal - Drawing C-2038, Revision 0

The drawing indicate‘ that installation is "Q".

However, theteqﬁ?a handwritten note on the drawing
contrary to this indicating that only the inspection

of the work be "Q". The inspector requested to see

an official FCN, DCN, FCR, etc. that changes the drawing,

not an informal note.



(1)

-~

8. FIVP four poing jacking = Drawing C-149-, Revision 2

Notes on the drawing indicatednot to exceed 1820 kips

for each unit, they also 1ndicatq§that if shims at any
location become loose, further jacking shall stop and the
the RSE notified. They go on to say that shim tightness
shall be checked to determine whether shims come lcose

or not during jacking. The notes feil to document the
main purpose of the proof load test; to determine if the
as-built temporary supports can support the entire weight
of the FIVP. 1f liftoff of all four corners does not
occur, we have no assurance that we are supporting the

entire weight of the FIVP.

In summary, the NRC will not continue tc serve as a consultant to CPCo

management.

Remaining work activities will be reviewed and approved by

CPCo management prior to issuance to the NRC for authorization. It is

your responsibility to ensure that in the future all information provided

to the NRC is complete and reviewed.

Landsman/ls

R. F. Warnick, Acting Director
Office of Special Cases

Gardner Shafer Warnick
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Docket No. 99900785/82-01 .

The Zack Company

ATTN: Mrs. Christene Zack Delutel
President

4600 W. 12th Place

Chicago, I1linois 60650

Gentlemen:

This refers to the inspection conducted by Mr. L. E. Ellershaw of this office
on August 3-6, 1982, of your facility at Cicero, I1linois, associated with the
manufacture of heating, ventilation and air conditioning (HVAC) systems and

to the discussions of our findings with you and members of your staff at the

conclusion of the inspection.

This inspection was conducted as a result of the receipt by the Nuclear
Regulatory Commission (NRC) of allegations pertaining to implementation and
enforcement of the Zack Company quality assurance program, and was performed

in conjunction with an investigation by the Chicago Field Office of the NRC
Office of Investigation. Investigative findings are contained i.: NRC

Report No. 99900785/82-02. The main purposes of the inspection were to assist

the investigative staff in the evaluation of identified coicerns, and to establish
whether HVAC system manufacture was consistent with applicable codes, contractual
and regulatory requirements. To make this determination, the primary areas

selected for inspection were welding process control, nonconformances and correc-



. tive action, audits, indoctrindtion and training, document control, QA records,

procurement document control and implementation of 10 CFR Part 21.

Areas examined and our findings are discussed in the enclosed report. Within
these areas, the inspection consisted of an examination of procedures and
representative records, interviews with personnel, and observations by the
inspector. ;

During the inspection, several instances were identified where the implementation
of your QA program failed to comply with NRC requirements. The specific findings
and references to the pertinent requirements are identified in the enclosures

to this letter.
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Please provide us within 30 days from the date of this letter a ;ritten state-

ment containing: (1) a description of steps that have been or will be taken to

correct these items; (2) a description of steps that have been or will be taken
to prevent recurrence; and (3) the date your corrective cctions and preventive

measures were or will be completed. Consideration may be given to extending

your response time for good cause shown.

The response requested by this letter is not subject to the clearance pro-
cedures of the Office of Management and Budget as required by the Paperwork

Reduction Act of 1980, PL 96-511.

It is apparent from the results of this inspection, that our inspectors have
established that significant deficiencies exist in the implementation of your
quality assurance program relative to HVAC system manufacture. Accordingly,
it is requested that you furnish to this office, in addition to the corrective
action measures requested above for each identified nonconformance, a descrip-
tion of those management actions that have been or will be taken to provide

for future effective implementation of your quality assurance program.

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 of the Commission's regulations, a copy of this
letter and the enclosed inspection report will be placed in the NRC's Public
Document Room. If this report contains any information that you believe to be
exempt from disclosure under 10 CFR 9.5(a)(4), it is necessary that you

(a) notify this office by telephone within 10 days from the date of this

letter of your intention to file a request for withholding; and (b) submit

within 25 days from the date of this letter a written application to this



office to withhold such information. If your receipt of this letter has been
delayed such that less than 7 days are available for your review, please
notify this office promptly so tﬁft a new due date may be established.
Consistent with Section 2.790(b)(1), any such application must be accompanied
by an affidavit executed by the owner of the information which 1ﬁentifies the
document or part sought to be withheld, and which contains a full statement of
the reasons on the basis which it is claimed that the irnformation should be
withheld from public disclosure. This section further requires the statement
to address with specificity the considerations listed in 10 CFR 2.790(b)(4).
The information sought to be withheld shall be incorporated as far as possible
into a separate part of the affidavit. If we do not hear from you in this
regard within the specified periods noted above, the report will be placed in

the Public Document Room.
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Should you have any questions concerning this inspection, we will be pleased to

discuss them with you.

Sincerely,

John 7. Collins

Regional Adminictrator

Enclosure:

1. Appendix A - Notice of Nonconformance

2. Appendix B - Inspection Report No. 99900785/82-01
3, Appendix C - Inspection Data Sheets (6 pages)



APPENDIX A

The Zack Company
Docket No. 99900785/82-01

NOTICE OF NONCONFORMANCE

Based on the results of an NRC inspection conducted on August 3-6, 1982, it
appears that certain of your activities were not conducted in accordance with

NRC requirements as indicated below:

Criterion V of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50 states: "Activities affecting
quality shall be prescribed by documented instructions, procedures, or
drawings, of a type appropriate to the circumstances and shall be accomplished
in accordance with these instructions, procedures, or drawings. Instructions,
procedures, or drawings shall include appropriate gquantitative or qualitative
acceptance criteria for determining that important activities have been

satisfactorily accomplished."

Nonconformances with these requirements are as follows:

A. Section 10 of the QA Manual, Revision 3, states in part, "All welding for
standard duct work, Class 1 duct work, and Seismic duct work shall be in
strict accordance with these established procedures, and deviations of any

kind shall not be permitted. . . ."



Welding Procedure Specification WPS-1, a Gas Metal Arc Welding procedure,
paragraph 13.0 states in part, "This procedure is qualified in accordance
with AWS D1.1-79, Section 5, Part B . . . ." AWS D1.1-79, Section 5,
Part B, states in part, "In preparing the procedure specifipation. the
manufacturer or contractor shall report the specific values:for the
essential variables that are specified . . . . The changes set forth in
5.5.2.1 through 5.5.2.5 shall be considered essential changes in a welding
procedure and shall require establishing a new procedure by qualifica-
;R

Part 5.5.2.3, Gas Metal Arc Welding (GMAW), identifies the following as
essential variables: A change in electrode diameter; a change of more
than 10% above or below the specified mean amperage for each diameter
electrode used, and an increase of 25% or more or a decrease of 10% or
more in the rate of flow of shielding gas or mixture. WPS-1, when used
for the welding of ASTM A-36 material, was qualified with a 0.045 inch
diameter electrode at 195 amps and with a gas flow rate of 20 cubic feet

per hour (CFH).



-

Contrary to the above, the NRC inspector observed deviations being

permitted and changes to essential variables being made without the
procedure being requalified during GMAW of duct rings for the Midland
Plant, in which the welder was using 0.035 inch diameter weld wire,

125 amps, and a gas flow rate of 30 CFH.

Procedure QCP-29, "Plant Procedure for Welding Electrode Control,"
Revision 0, dated September 5, 1979, Section 5 states in part, " . . .
The Foreman will record daily on the Weld Material Control Sheet: The

welder's name and symbol; date; weld procedure to be used; type,

size, and amount of rod issued; rod heat number, . . . and amount
returned . . . ."
Section 7 states in part, " . . . After electrodes have been removed from

its original package, it shall be protected so that its characteristics
or welding properties are not affected . . . . Traceability of electrodes
is accomplished by checking dates on (the) specific Zack Company traveler

and weld material control sheet."

Contrary to the above, the following conditions were identified:

1. Electrodes (bare wire on spools) were not being protected, in that
three spools of stainless steel electrodes, each of a different
type, were observed under a work bench in an uncovered condition.
Further, two spools had been issued on December 17, 1981, and the

other on April 16, 1982.
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2. Traceability of these electrodes would be precluded when used at a time

later than the issue date, in that the date of issue as shown on
the weld material control sheet would not coincide with the date of
actual welding on a specific Zack Company traveler. :
QA Manual Section 6, Revision 3, dated September 26, 1977, states in part,
"Fabrication instructions(s) are provided to the fabricatio; shop by
Engineering in the form of Shop Travelers that specifically set forth
all necessary data. This will include: . . . any special processes to
be used such as machine rolled, welded construction, etc. . . ."
AWS D1.1, Section 2, Part A, paragraph 2.1 states in part, “Fu11 and com-
plete informatien regarding location, type, size, and extent of all welds
shall be clearly shown on the drawings . . . . Detail drawings shall

clearly indicate by wela ng symbols or sketches the details of groove

welded joints and the preparation of material required to make them . . . .




Contrary to the above, full and complete information pertaiﬁing to welds,

weld joints, and material preparation, was not shown on shop travelers/
detail drawings provided to shop personnel. The only information
provided was the welding procedure specification number, which does nct

delineate the above information.

QA Manual Section 10, page 2, Revision 3, dated April 1, 1981, states in
part, "All welding . . . shall be in accordance with our established
welding procedures, and subject to the requirements, tests, and inspection

set forth in the welding procedures."

Contrary to the above, instructions, procedures, or drawings did not
incluae appropriate qualitative acceptance criteria for welds. Therefore,
without acceptance criteria being stipulated, specific inspection require-

ments were rut set forth in welding procedures.

QA Manual Section 7, page 4, Revision 1, dated March 1, 1977, states in
part, "The controlled manufacturing system is continued in the fabri-
cation shop to insure that the activities employed affecting qualit; are

being satisfactorily accomplished.

“Shop supervisor shall be responsible for checking all shop fabrication

tickets to insure that they are complete in all respects . . . .

"They shall be checked for method of fabrication, welded seams or machine

rolled, or any other special process that is required and the extent of



supervision or inspection required during production."

Contrary to the above, shop fabrication tickets were not complete in all
respects, in that they did not address certain fabrication methods/opera-
tions and their sequencing; e.g., rolling or forming, and galvanizing.

QA Manual Section 8, page 1, Revision 2, dated September 16§ 1977, states

in part, " . . . all purchases thut are made will be made by using a written
purchase order. Any verbal orders shall be confirmed in writing as soon

as possible." Page 2, Revision 1, dated March 1, 1977, states in part,

" . . . For Nuclear Plant and/or seismic application, physical and chemical
material certifications will be supplied by vendor. A1l purchase orders
will contain specific statements requiring certification and physical

and chemical properties of materials as required . . . ."

Section 9, page 1, Revision 1, dated March 1, 1977, states in part,

" . The plant Quality Control Inspector shall inspect the incoming

material to insure that it meets the requirements of the‘purchase order

and that it is acceptable for its intended use . . . ." »



Contrary to the above, the following conditions were identified:

1. Zack Company placed purchase order (PO) Number C-4199 with Central-
West Machinery Company in November 1980, for 152 gallons of

Hardcast FTA-20. This material was received and accepted.

Subsequently, a verbal order for an additional 24 gallons was
placed and received in November 1980, and as of the date of this

inspection, no written confirmation has been made.

2. Zack Company placed PO Number C-874 with Griffiths-McKillen Steel
Company on July 5, 1979 for 3000 1bs., of 14 gage ASTM A-240 Type
304-2B stainless steel and 600 feet of 1% x 1% x 1/8 stainless angles,
ASTM A-276 Type 304 with certifications required.

The received and accepted certification, dated July 18, 1979, for the
ASTM A-240 material shows the following: tensile strength -

66,000 psi; phosphorus=-0.38; sulfur-0.06; and nitrogen content is

not addressed. The ASTM A-240 standard requires 70,000 psi tensile
strength minimum; 0.045 maximum phosphorus; 0.03 maximum sulfur; and

0.10 maximum nitrogen.

3. Zack Company placed PO Number C-4458, dated July 30, 1981, with
Hobart North for 30 1bs. stainless steel weld rod, 3/32" Type
308. The PO stated "Actual or Typical Chemistry, RT (radiography),

mechanicals, Charpy V notch tests."



The Certified Material Test Report (CMTR) was received and accepted
by Zack Company, but did not address RT or Charpy V notch tests.
(NOTE: The material specification does not require RT or Charpy's).
Zack Company placed PO Number C-9433, dated August 4, 1976, with
Vincent Brass & Aluminum Company for 4000 1bs. of 20 gige and 2000 1bs.
of 22 gage stainless coils, Type 316, ASTM A-240, with mill certi-
fications required.

The material was received with a certification dated August 9, 1976.
The 20 gage material was returned to Vincent due to damage. However,
the 22 gage material was accepted, although the certification did not
list a heat number and did not provide the actual chemistry. The
chemistry stated on the certification was simply a reiteration of the
chemistry requirements stated in ASTM A-240. (NOTE: This material
was ordered as nonsafety related; however, this does not negate

the stated requirement).

Zack Company placed PO Number C-739, dated September 29, 1978, with
U.S. Steel Company for 20 tons of ASTM A-527, A-525 galvanized

coils. Certifications were required. The material and certifi-
cations were received and accepted, showing the heat numbers as

J 74531 and J 74278.

The certification did not provide physical test reports for heat

J 74531. (NCTE: The ASTM material standard does not require
physical properties to be reported; however, this material was
purchased for use at the Clinton Power Station site and the Clinton

specification did require physical properties to be reported).



Section 7.1.2 of PQCP-7, Revision 8, "Plant Document Control" states
in part, “"Customer approved editions/revisions to the ZQAM 2re controlled
by the QAM. Such control to include as a minimum the following

. 7.1.2.4 Establishment, by project, of a file of voided documents.
7.1.2.5 Documented distribution requiring written acknowiedgment of

receipt."”

Section 7.2.2 of PQCP-7, Revision 8, states in part, "New or revised . . .
WPS's approved by the customer, are controlled by the QAM. Such control
to include as a minimum the provisions of paragraphs 7.2.1.2 through

7.1.2.5 above."

Contrary to the above, the file of voided documents did not contain
Revision 0 to the ZQAM (Clinton Project) nor Revisions 1, 2, 3, and 5
of Welding Procedure WPS-1. There was no documentation to show that
the QC Manager at Clinton, who is on the Controlled Copy Distribution
List, received a copy of WPS-1, Revision 10 (June 1, 1981) or the ZQAM,
Revision 1 (September 30, 1980).

Section 19, "Audits" of the QA Manual (ZQAM-Revision 3) for LaSalle states
in part, "In plant audits shall be performed a minimum of once a year

by the Quality Control Department Manager . . . ."

Section 19, "Audits" of the QA Manual (ZQAM-Revision 1) for Clinton states
in part, "Audits are performed in accordance with written procedures or

check lists . . . Audits wil) be performed as follows: (1) Zack



Site-Every twelve months for all sections of the manual; (2) Plant-Every
twelve months for all sections of the manual . . . o
Section 7.0 of PQCP-17, Revision 1, "Training, Certification and Evalua-
tion of Quality Assurance Auditors - Performance of Audits and Vendor/
Supplier Surveys" states in part, SR (% Auditors/Lead_Auditors
prepare a written audit plan identifying the activity and o;ganization
to be audited . . . 7.7 Audits shall be performed by use of check-
lists (2QF-86) . . . ."
Contrary to the above, a review of the internal audits conducted at the
lack plant, and the LaSalle and Clinton sites from 1979 through 1981
(no audits were performed in 1982) showed that all section of the manuals
were not audited on an annual basis. There was also no evidence of 10
audit plans or 3 check lists for the 17 internal audits performed.
I. Section 18, "QA Records" of the QA Manual (ZQAM-Revision 1) states in part,
"A1]l records in the home office . . . shall be indexed, filed, and
maintained in a fireproof steel cabinet . . . As a minimum, records

"

shall include: . . . 5. Qualification of personnel . .



Contrary to the above, a review of the QA record files for both the
LaSalle and Clinton projects indicated that there were no personnel

qualifications maintained for one shop welder and two auditors.

Procedure QCP-11, Revision 6, "Training Procedures for Personnel Per-
forming Quality Contro) Inspection" requires that QC inspection personnel
for the LaSalle project meet visual and color vision standards, and the
visual requirements be verified annually by reexamination. In addition,
certification forms which will be completed for each person who performs

inspections, will be retained in the project files.

Procedure PQCP-11, Revision 1, "Training, Certification, and Evaluation

of Quality Control Inspectors" requires that QC inspection personnel for

the Clinton project have an annual examination for visual acuity, and the
results of these examinations be maintained in the files. The certification
is also documented on a form which is maintained in the files. In

addition, the inspectors are evaluated 30 days after certification and

annually thereafter, and the evaluations are documented on a form.

Procedure PQCP-16, Revision 1, "On-going Training" requires that QC and
plant fabrication personnel receive monthly training from both the Quality
Control Manager and the Production Manager, and each training session

is documented and retained in the QA files.

Contrary to the above, a review of the QA files for 13 QC inspectors

(LaSalle), 21 QC inspectors (Clinton), and 4 welders revealed a lack



of documentation for the following items:
- X
3.
4.

Annual Eye Exam - 15 (Clinton) and 6 (LaSalle) inspectors;
Certification Form - 13 (Clinton) and 1 (LaSalle) inspectors;
Performance Evaluation - 16 (Clinton) inspectors; and

On-going Training - 8 (Clinton) inspectors and 4 welders.

Paragraph 4.1 of "The Zack Company Procedure for Compliance-with 10 CFR

Part 21," Revision 0, dated December 9, 1976 states, "Any employee of the

Zack Company who has reason to believe a deviation exists, is required to

supply this information both verbally and in writing to his immediate

supervisor. The written report shall be in accordance with the form of

Appendix A (10 CFR Part 21 evaluation report).

one working day of the verbal notification. The reporting and evaluation

chain is shown in Figure 1."

»

It shall be prepared within



-

Contrary to the above, written 10 CFR Part 21 evaluation reports had
not been prepared or submitted to supervision with respect to identified

deviations.

Paragraph 9.1 of Sargent & Lundy Engineers, Chicago, I1linois, Standard
Specification J-2590 for HVAC Duct work (Form 320) states in part, "The
Contracter (Zack Company) shall be responsible for the leak tightness of
each duct system. To assure minimum leakage, the Contractor shall seal
all joints and seams which are not gasketed with and (sic) approved
material as specified in Article 3.5 for al) nonnuclear applications,

and shall be in accordance with Article 3.6 for all nuclear plant systems,
except HVAC systems in the service building, which can be the same as

nonnuclear applications . . . ."

Cont-ary to the above, unapproved materials (Hardcast FTA-20 adhesive

and duct tape) were used in sealing HVAC systems at LaSalle.

Paragraph 7.7 of QCP-8, "NCR," Revision 4, dated October 2, 1980, requires
the signature of the Project Engineer in Blank 15, of the Zack Company

Nonconformance Report (Form ZQF-11) acknowledging corrective action taken.

Contrary to the above, three NCR's (622, 776, 781, LaSalle) were initialled
for the Project Engineer by an unidentified second party, and one NCR
(475, LaSalle) was unsigned.



ORGANIZATION: THE ZACK COMPANY
CHICAGO, ILLINOIS

REPORT INSPECTION INSPECTION
NO.: 99900785/82-01 DATE(S) 8/3-6/82 ON-SITE HOURS: 81

CORRESPONDENCE ADDRESS: The Zack Company -
ATTN: Mrs. Christene Zack DeZutel
President
4600 W. 12th Place
Chicage, I1linois 60650

ORGANIZATIONAL CONTACT: Mrs. Christene Zack DeZutel
TELEPHONE NUMBER: (312) 242-3434

PRINCIPAL PRODUCT: Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning Systems (HVAC).

NUCLEAR INDUSTRY ACTIVITY: Current activity consists of HVAC systems being furnished
to the Commonwealth Edisur Company's LaSalle County Station, Units 1 and 2;

I11inois Power Company's Clinton Power Station, Unit 1; and Consumers Power
Company's Midland Plant, Units 1 and 2.

ASSIGNED INSPECTOR:
L. E. ElTershaw, Reactive & Component Program Date
Section (R&CPS)

OTHER INSPECTOR(S): J. T. Conway, R&CPS
L. B. Parker, R&CPS

APPROVED BY:

T. Barnes, Chief, R&CPS Date

INSPECTION BASES AND SCOPE:
A. BASES: Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50.

B. SCOPE: This inspection was conducted as a result of the receipt by the Nuclear
PeguTatory Commission (NRC) of allegations pertaining to implementation and
enforcement of the Zack Company quality assurance program, and was performed
in conjunction with an investigation by the Chicago Field Office of the NRC
Office of Investigation. Investigative findings are contained in NRC Report
No. 99900785/82-02. The main purposes of the inspection were to assist the
(cont. on next page)

PLANT SITE APPLICABILITY:
50-373; 50-374; 50-329; 50-330; 50-461.
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ORGANIZATION: THE ZACK COMPANY

CHICAGO, ILLINOIS

REPORT INSPECTION

NO.:

99900785/82-01 RESULTS: *  PAGE 2 of 9

SCOPE: (cont.) investigative staff in the evaluation of identified concerns,
and to establish whether HVAC system manufacture was consistent with
applicable codes, contractual and regulatory requirements. To make this
determination, the primary areas selected for inspection were welding process
control, nonconformances and corrective action, audits, indoctrination, and
training, document control, QA records, procurement document control and
implementation of 10 CFR Part 21.

VIOLATIONS:
None

NONCONFORMANCES:

1. Contrary to Criterion V of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50, QA Manual
Section 10, and AWS D1.1-79, the NRC inspector observed deviations being
permitted and changes to essential variables being made without the
procedure being requalified during GMAW of duct rings for the Midland
Plant, in which the welder was using 0.035 inch diameter weld wire,

125 amps, and a gas flow rate of 30 CFH.

2. Contrary to Criterion V of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50 and Procedure
QCP-29, the following conditions were:identified:

a. Electrodes (bare wire on spools) were not being protected, in
that three spools of stainless steel electrodes, each of a different
type, were observed under a work bench in an uncovered condition.
Further, two spools had been issued on December 17, 1981 and the
other on April 16, 1982.

b. Traceability of these electrodes would be precluded when used at a
time later than the issue date, in that the date of issue as shown
on the weld material control sheet would not coincide with the
date of actua) welding on a specific Zack Company traveler.

3. Contrary to Criterion V of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50, QA Manual
Section 6, and AWS D1.1-79, full and complete information pertaining
to welds, weld joints, and matérial preparation, was not shown on shop
travelers/detail drawings provided to shop personnel. The orly infor-
mation provided is the welding procedure specification number, which
does not delineate the above information.
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Contrary to Criterion V of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50 and QA Manual
Section 10, instructions, procedures, or drawings did not include appro-
priate qualitative acceptance criteria for welds. Therefore, without
acceptance criteria being stipulated, specific inspection requirements
were not set forth in welding procedures.

Contrary to Criterion V of Appendix B tu 10 CFR Part 50 and QA Manual
Section 7, shop fabrication tickets were not complete in all respects,
in that they did not address certain fabrication methods/operations
and their sequencing; e.g., rolling or forming, and galvanizing.

Contrary to Criterion V of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50 and QA Manual
Section 8, the following conditions were identified:

a. lack Company placed purchase order (P0O) Number C-419S w:ci
Central-West Machinery Company in November 1980, for 152 gallons
of Hardcast FTA-20. This material was received and accepted.

Subsequently, a verbal order for an additional 24 gallons was
placed and received in November 1980, and as of the date of this
inspection, no written confirmation has been made.

b.  Zack Company placed PO number C-874 with Griffiths-McKillen
Steel Company on July 5, 1973 for 3000 1bs. of 14 gage ASTM
A-240 Type 304-2B stainless steel and 600 feet of 1% x 1% x ./8
stainless angles, ASTM A-276 Type 304, with certifications
required.

The received and accepted ce~tification, dated July 18, 1979,
for the ASTM A-240 material showed the following: tensile
strength - 66,000 psi; phosphorus - 0.38; sulfur - 0.06;

and nitrogen content was not addressed. The ASTM A-240
standard requires 70,000 psi tensile strength (minimum),
0.045 maximum phosphorus, 0.03 maximum sulfur, and 0.10
maximum nitrogen.

c.  Zack Company placed PO number C-4458, dated July 30, 1981, with
Hobart North for 30 1bs., stainless steel weld rod, 3/32"
Type 308. The PO stated "Actual or Typical Chemistry, RT
(radiography), mechanicals, Charpy V notch tests."
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The Certified Material Test Report (CMTR) was received and
accepted by Zack Company, but did not address RT or Charpy V
notch tests. (NOTE: The material specification does not
require RT or Charpy's, however, it is still a PO requirement).

d. Zack Company placed PO Number C-9433, dated August 4, 1976, with
Vincent Brass & Aluminum Company for 4000 1bs. of 20 gage
and 2000 1bs. of 22 gage stainless coils, Type 316, ASTM A-240,
with mill certifications required.

The material was received with a certification dated August 9,
1976. The 20 gage material was returned to Vincent due to
damage. However, the 22 gage material was accepted, although
the certification did not 1ist a heat number and did not
provide the actual chemistry. The chemistry stated on the
certification was simply a reiteration of the chemistry
requirements stated in ASTM A-240. (NOTE: This material

was ordered as nonsafety related; however, this does not
negate the stated requirements).

e. Zack Company placed PO Number C-739, dated September 29, 1978, with
US Steel Company for 20 tons of ASTM A-527, A-525 galvanized
coils. Certifications were required.

The material and certifications were received and accepted,
showing the heat numbers as J 74531 and J 74278.

The certifications did not provide physical test reports for
heat J 74531. (NOTE: The ASTM material standard does not
require physical properties to be reported; however, this
material was purchased for use at the Clinton Power Station
site and the Clinton specification did require physical pro-
perties to be reported).

7. Contrary to Criterion V of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50 and paragraph
9.1 of Sargent & Lundy Engineers, Chicago, I11inois, Standard Specifi-
cation J 2590 for HVAC duct work (Form 320), unapproved materials
(Hardcast FTA-20 adhesive and duct tape) were used in sealing HVAC
systems at LaSalle.

8. Contrary to Criterion V of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50 and PQCP-7,
"Plant Document Control,"” there was no documented evidence that a
voided document file was maintained up-to-date for the QA Manual for
Clinton and welding procedure WPS-1.
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Contrary to Criterion V of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50, Section 19,
"Audits," of the QA Manuals for LaSalle and Clinton, and PQCP-17,
"Training, Certification and Evaluation of Quality Assurance Auditors =
performance of Audits and Vendor/Supplier Surveys," a review of internal
audits conducted from 1979 through 1981 showed all sections of the QA
manuals were not audited on an annual basis, and 10 audit plan and

3 check lists were missing for the 17 internal audits performed.

Contrary to Critericn V of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50 and Section 18,
“QA Records! of tne QA Manuals for LaSalle and Clinton, a review of the
QA records files for both the LaSalle and Clinton projects indicated
that there were no personnel qualifications maintained for one shop
welder and two auditors.

Contrary to Criterion V of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 30; QCpP-11,
"Training Procedures for Personnel performing Quality Control Inspec-
tion; " PQCP-11, "Training, Certification, and Evaluation of Quality
Control Inspectors;" and PQCP-16 "On-going Training," a review of the QA
files for 13 QC inspectors (LaSalle), 21 QC inspectors (Clinton), and

4 welders revealed a lack of documentation for the following items:

-

a. Annual eye exam - 14 (Clinton) and 6 (LaSalle) inspectors;

b. Certification Form - 13 (Clinton) and 1 (LaSalle) inspectors;
¢. Performation Evaluation - 16 (Clinton) inspectors; and

d. On-going Training - 8 (Clinton) inspectors and 4 welders.

Contrary to Criterion V of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50, and paragraph
4.1 of "The Zack Company Procedure for Compliance with 10 CFR Part - Py
written 10 CFR Part 21 evaluation reports had not been prepared or
sumitted to supervision with respect to identified deviations.

Coitrary to Criterior V of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50 and paragraph
7.7 of QCP-8, three NCR's (LaSalle) were initialled for the Project
Engineer by an unidentified second party and one NCR (LaSalle) was
unsi Jned.
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C.  UNRESOLVED ITEMS:

None

D.  OTHER FINDINGS OR COMMENTS:

1. Review of Allegation Background

This inspection was conducted at the request of the NRC Region III Office,
and in conjunction with an investigation into allegations received from
former Zack Company employees, pertaining to falsified/altered quality
assurance documentation; namely, material certifications.

The alleger first contacted NRC Region III, in person, on May 3, 1982,
and subsequently by telephone on May 10, 1982, and again, in person,

on May 19, 1982. The allegations, briefly, dealt with possible

forged signatures, use of white-out to effect changes in reported
results, and the adding of information to material certifications which
had been received from material suppliers/manufacturers.

The Zack Company had identified these conditions in letters to their
customers on the following dates: (1) Bechtel Power Corporation-Midland
Plant, Units 1 and 2, August 28, 1981; (2) Baldwin Associates-Clinton
Power Station, Unit 1, September 25, 1981; and (3) Commonwealth Edison
Company-LaSalle County Station, Unit 1 and 2, September 25, 1981.

The Zack Company was performing a review of all purchase order files,
including certifications, and was taking action to rectify all discovered
discrepancies. One of the actions taken was to establish a formal
documentation control system. In order to implement the system,
additional personnel were required. A file clerk and a document

control supervisor were hired on October 5, 1981, and October 19,

1981, respectively.

In addition to establishing and implement’ng the document control
system, the document control supervisor was responsible for conduct-
ing the review and evaluation of all the purchase order files. Sub-
sequent Tetters (status reports) to the customers, from the document
contr] supervisor, reflected that corrected certifications were
being received and very few discrepancies remained.
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The file clerk was laid off and the supervisor terminated on April 30,
1982. Both of these people were involved with the allegations.

NRC Report No. 99900785/82-02 addresses the specific findings relative
to the allegations.

Areas Inspected

Welding Process Control = The NRC inspector reviewed the welding
material contro] system including the issuance, documentation
(weld material test reports), retrieval, and storage of welding
materials. The applicable welding procedure specifications, their
procedure qualification records, and shop drawings/travelers were
reviewed. In-process gas metal arc welding was observed being
performed on duct rings beinrg supplied to the Midland Plant. As

a result of this observation and review, nonconformances B.1, B.2,
B.3, and B.4 were identified. Additionally, nonconformance £.5 was
icentified, although not a specific part of this area of the
inspecti n.

Procurement Document Control = A tot2] of 94 procuredent document
Tiles were reviewed. These files consisted of Zack Company purchase
orders and supplements, shipping documentation, material test
reports, certificates of conformance, spplicable correspondence,
receiving insnection repcrts, and copies of nonconformance reports
(if required). As a result of this review, nonconformance B.6

was identified. Further, review of Sargent & Lundy Engineers (S&L)
Standard Specification No. J 259C and S&L's approved material list
resulted in nonconformance B.7 being identified.

The NRC inspector expressed concern over the apparent failure

of the receiving inspection function to detect the discrepancies/
anomalies between the purchase order requirements and the material
certifications.

Document Control - A reviev of the master file for th: QA Manuals
and quality control and welding procedures, as well as the file

on voided documents for the Clinton and LaSalle projects, resulted
in the identification of nonconformance B.8.

Audits - A review of reports for 17 internal audits conducted at

the Zack, LaSalle, and Clinton sites from 1975 through 1981 and a
review of 10 vendar/supplier zudit reports conducted from

October 1981 through May 1982, resulted in the identification of

nonconformance B.9.
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A Records - A review of the QA record file for 13 QC inspectors
at [aSalTe, 21 QC inspectors at Clinton, 4 welders, and 5 auditors
resulted in the identification of nonconformances B.10 and B.11,

A detailed evaluation of the QA program for both the LaSalle and
Clinton projects, to determine if activities were being imple-
mented consistent with quality commitments contained in both

QA Manuals, and discussions with Zack personnel resulted in the
following additionai comments:

The QA Manuals and applicable procedures for both the LaSalle
and Clinton projects appear to require updating to satisfy
the requirements of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50. Examples
of observed discrepancies are as follows:

(1) The organization chart does not identify all the onsite and
offsite groups which function under the cognizance of the
QA program, and the QA responsibilities of each group are
not described;

(2) The organizational positions with stop work authority and
the individual responsible for directing and managing the
site QA program are not identified;

(3) Indoctrination, training, and qualification programs are not
documented;

(4) Qualifications and certifications of inspectors and auditors
are not being kept current;

(5) The basis for selection of suppliers is not being documented
and filed;

(6) There was no documentation to indicate that supplier's certi-
cates of conformance are periodically evaluated by audits,
independent inspections, or tests, to assure they are valid;

(7) There were no requiriﬁents for in-process inspection of work
by individuals other than those who performed or directly
supervised the activity;

(8) Qualification records of procedures, equipment and personnel
associated with special processes (e.g., welding) had not been
fully established, filed and kept current; and
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(9) There was no requirement for management (above or outside
the QA organization) to regularly assess the scope, status
and compliance cf the QA program to 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B.

f. Implementation of 10 CFR Part 21 - The NRC inspector reviewed the
vendor's procedure "The Zack Company's Procedure for Compliance
with 10 CFR Part 21," Revision 0, dated December 19, 1978, to
verify that adequate documented measures were available to meet
the reporting requirements of 10 TFR Part 21. The evaluation
requirements were not followed (see nonconformance E.12). Two
reports were examined for completeness and adherence to notifi-
cation requirements. These reports were: (1) a 10 CFR Part 21
report to NRC Re?ion 111 on June 9, 1982, concerning fire dampers;
and (2) a potential 10 CFR Part 21 —eport to NRC Region III on
August 2, 1982, concerning weld records. These reports met
the requirements of the vendor's procedure.

Observations of the employee's bulletin board verified that the
above vendor's procedure and Section 206 of the Energy Reorganiza-
tion Act of 19/4, were properly posted.

g. Nonconformances and Corrective Action - The NRC inspector reviewed
the following vendor's procedure and twc quality assurance manual
sections to determine the QA/QC requirements for the subject area
at the LaSalle site: Quality Control Procedure 8, Revision 4,
dated October 2, 1980, "NCR"; Section 16 of the Quality Assurance
Manual (QAM), Revision 2, dated April 1, 1981, "Nonconforming
Material, Parts or Components"; Section 17 of the QAM, Revision 2,
dated September 16, 1977, "Corrective Action." Three bocks of
completed NCR's (300) were reviewed in the process of determining
specific NCR's to be examined. Thirty-five specifir CR's and 20
Corrective Action Reports were examined for completeness and
compliance with the above requirements. Management review of
NCR corrective action was lacking on four of the NCR's examined.
(See nonconformance B.13).
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Jackson, Michigan 49201
Dear Mr. Cook:

Subject: Caseload Forecast Panel Estimate of Construction Completion
Schedule

On Apri) 19-21, 1983, the NRC Caseload Forecast Panel visited the Midland
Plant to evaluate constructicn completion schedules. The meeting discussed
in detail the basis for Consumer's revised estimates of October 1984

Unit 2) and February 1985 (Unit 1). On April 20, 1983 the Panel con-
ucted an extensive tour of both units to observe construction progress.
The Panel has now completed its own evaluation of construction completion
schedules for Midland Plant, Units 1 & 2.

The Panel concludes that some months beyond the second quarter of 1286

is the earliest date that completion of Unit 2 can reasonably be expected,
Unit 1 is expected to be completed about 6 to 9 months thereafter. The
critical pathway involves reinspection and rework of pipe supports,
followed by execution of preoperational and acceptance testing.

The Pane)] believes that Consumer's estimate of 14 months to complete
preoperational and acceptance testing for both units is unduly optimistic.
The record for a recent single unit to date has been about 24 months.
Using a more realistic, but s1ightly optimistic, duration for two units
and Consumer's present status results in a completion date in the second

| quarter of 1936. However, the Panel aiso believes that Consumer's fore-

| cast does not realistically account for large uncertainties in the work
which must precede start of critical path testing, and that this can be
expected to add some months to Consumer's schedule. The Panel believes
that completion of refnspections of large and small bore pipe hangess and
the amount of rework resulting from this effort is a notable example of
the items expected to delay start of critical path testing by some months,
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The Panel’s estimate includes no provision for delay assoclated with future
plant financing. .

‘Sincerely, ]

Thomas M. Novak, Assistant Dfrector
for Licensing

Livision of Licensing

‘Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation
st e €c: See next page
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During a discussion during the public meeting on August 5, 1982 in Midland,
1 was asked by Mr. Paton to jot down the story fofthe deep Q duct-%ank

excavation. Here it is.

When Darl Hood and Joe Kane were in Midland for the ACRS hearing, I asked

for a mceting to be held on site betwecn NRR, Bechtel, the licensee and
myself. The meet‘ng took place on a Thursday afterncon in the Remedial Soils
Trailer (May 20, 1982). The purpose of the meeting was to discuss numerous

concerns that I had about ongoing work and future work.

One of the concerns discussed was a monitoring pit for what has bz = come

to be known as the deep Q duct bank. During that meeting both Joe and 1
expressed our concerns that what the licensee was planning was not approved,
that is: to excavate below the duct bank. Joe only approved an excavation
down to a duct bank approximately 22 feet deep. This is documented in
Tedesco to Cook letter dated February 12, 1982, which references a Mooney to

Denton letter dated January 6, 1982,

Since the licensee usually doegn't know what's in the groundc(where it's at,
as usual the 22 foot duct bank was approximately found at 35 feet. It also
wasn't in the right location as evidenced by the sheet piling hitting one
side of the duct. In addition, while drilling the dewatering well, they
inadvertently drilled through the duct bank, emptying the drilling fluid

into the turbine building.



I had no problem with the licensee taking the excavation pit down to 35 feet

instead of the approved 22 feet, since the methodclogy of the approved
hole remained the same. Joe and I did have a problem with them wanting to
excavate below the duct bank down to impervious clay to seal off the water

flow without first informing NRR of their plans.

All of this was discussed during the meeting and the licensee was told that
they could not excavate below the deep Q duct bank. The licensee indicated

that they would submit something formal to Joe for approval.

The following day, I reiterated this during the normal exit meeting and again
during the summary at the end of that meeting. 1 asked if everyone understocod

what I was saying and they acknowledgel.

The following week, during my inspection to allow the licensee to activate
1; a‘“
the freeze-wall, I told theﬁﬁ&hat they could not dig below the deep Q duct

bank.

Subsequently, after the activlztion of the freeze-wall, the licensee decided
that they had to seal off the water flow beneath the duct bank and proceeded

to dig below the duct bank without any NRC approval. I'm not sure when
excavation began, but I was on site July 28 wh¢n I discovered the excavation

in progress. The license, when informed of my concern, issued a Stop Work Order

on July 29, 1982. I wondered why they were so agreeable until I found out that



they already had the excavation down to where they wanted it (the clay).

I informed the .icensee during my exit on July 30 that they were in direct
violation of the Board Order and their ‘bnsttuction E%rmit. To make matters
worse, the licensee during the exit said that they discussed this with

Mr. Hood and Kane in Ann Arbor earlier that morning and had gotten “"approval"
for what they're doing. 1 1nfofmed the licensee that they missed the point
(basis of concern). My concern dealt not with the adequacy of what they were
doing, but rather with their requirement to notify and receive prior approval
before proceeding below the duct bank. Subsequently, Mr. Kane indicated to
me that they never even talked to him about this, »=d Mr. Hood indicated that
they talked to him about somethin9 concerning che deep Q duct bank, but he

in no way had given approval.

They appeared to wait for me to leave the site, when thﬁ'began another unapproved

fire protection line excavation in Q dirt which was discovered by me on
August &4, my next inspection. This excavation is along side the SWPS. 1
have not had time to look into it to better define the details, but as
pointed out to you and Darl, they have undermined a duct bank and an
unidentified pipe thrust block and appear to be along side a safety-related

duct bank.

In summary, the,icensee's attitude appears to be: their construction schedule
comes first, by the time the NRC finds out about it, we'll be done with what

we want and argue about whether we had approval later.



